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OVERVIEW

The financial year 2023/24 recorded a surplus of $1,162
million ($1,159 million for 2022/23). The surplus in
2023/24 was mainly due to significant investment gains
resulting from better-than-expected economic data,
which indicated that the central banks would lower
interest rates, as well as expectations of profitability gain
driven by advancements in artificial intelligence
technology. By excluding the impact of investment
return, the University recorded a surplus of $73 million
in 2023/24 compared to $352 million in 2022/23.

The University has practised Environmental, Social and
Corporate Government (“ESG”) investing since 2018.
Currently, over 75% of the investments are managed by
fund managers who are signatories of United Nations
Principles of Responsible Investment. As a result, the
exposure of the University’s investments to fossil fuels is
75% lower than the benchmark and virtually zero
exposure to controversial sectors such as tobacco and
weapons. The University has also allocated 2.5% of its
investments to climate solutions and will gradually
increase it further going forward.

CONSOLIDATED INCOME AND EXPENDITURE

Consolidated income increased by $802 million to
$7,517 million in 2023/24 ($6,715 million for 2022/23).
The increase was primarily driven by higher government
subventions and grants of $298 million due to the
additional University Grants Committee (“UGC”)
supplementary grants for General Pay Adjustment
(“GPA”) and the increase in research and other
earmarked grant income.

Additionally, there was an increase in interest and net
investment income of $282 million resulted from robust
performance of the University’s public equity, fixed
income and hedge fund investments, along with growth
in tuition fees mainly from Self-financing Continuing
Professional Education Programs, which amounted to
$122 million as compared to last year.

Consolidated expenditure increased by $784 million to
$6,344 million (85,560 million for 2022/23). The
increase was mainly attributable to higher salaries and
benefits costs due to the increase in headcounts of
academic and research staff and GPA adjustments, as
well as the increase in operating expenses due to the
growth in teaching, learning and research expenses.
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SEGMENT RESULTS

Commentaries on operating segments, analysed by UGC-
Funded Activities and non-UGC Funded Activitics, are
as follows:

UGC-Funded Activities

UGC-Funded Activities showed a surplus of $344
million for the year ($436 million for 2022/23). After
excluding the interest and net investment income of $449
million ($335 million for 2022/23), the underlying result
was a deficit of $105 million (surplus of $101 million for
2022/23).

Due to the favorable investment return recorded in
2023/24, the University's UGC reserves increased to
$4,629 million ($4,285 million for 2022/23).

Non-UGC Funded Activities

Self-Financing Continuing Professional Education
Programs, Research and Other Activities

Self-financing  Continuing  Professional Education
Programs contributed a surplus of $374 million ($375
million for 2022/23), remained at the similar level as
compared to last year. Research and other activities
contributed a surplus of $212 million ($227 million for
2022/23), reflecting a slight decrease as compared to last
year. In aggregate, the overall surplus of these operating
segments amounted to $586 million ($602 million for
2022/23).

Donations Activities

Donations totalling $163 million were recognised as
income for 2023/24 ($126 million for 2022/23). Overall,
this segment showed a surplus of $232 million ($121
million for 2022/23) as contributed by the increase in
investment return. The University has successfully
secured $764 million new pledges in 2023/24 ($417
million in 2022/23).

With the launch of The Hong Kong University of
Science and Technology Foundation (“HKUST
Foundation”), which is dedicated to outreach,
fundraising, and donor engagement, the University
anticipates that its fundraising capabilities will be further
enhanced.
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Non-UGC Reserves

Non-UGC reserve balances reached $9,998 million at the
end of 2023/24 ($8,896 million for 2022/23). The
increase in the reserve balance was mainly contributed by
the afore-stated investment return, self-financing CPEP
and other activities.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

More capital projects are underway to enhance the
University’s facilities and infrastructure addressing the
accommodation and amenity needs of students as well as
supporting teaching, learning and research activities.

To further enhance research capabilities for all HKUST
researchers, the University has acquired advanced
computing servers and established additional related
infrastructure to complement our state-of-the-art high-
performance computing facilities.

OUTLOOK

Following the announcement in the 2023 Policy Address
to double the non local student quota for the taught
undergraduate programmes from 20% to 40% starting
from the 2024/25 academic year, the University
anticipates recruiting more students from different
countries. This will promote internationalisation where
local students will benefit from cultural diversity and
broader global perspective.

To boost innovation and entrepreneurship, the University
introduced HKUST Redbird Innovation Fund (RIF), a
$500 million initiative to create multiple Venture
Investment Fund (VIFs) worth totally $2 billion in
collaboration with investment partners. This initiative
supports HKUST start-ups and aligns with the strategic
focus set out in HKUST’s Vision Plan 3.0. It strengthens
collaboration with universities and businesses, drives
innovation, and accelerates breakthrough solutions.
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Being ranked 3rd in the World’s Top 600+ Young
Universities in Times Higher Education Young
University Rankings 2024 (1st in Hong Kong & Greater
China), the University will continue to strive for
excellence in education and research to become one of
the top universities in the world.

As of 30 June 2024, the University maintained a healthy
reserve of $14.6 billion. To ensure the success of various
initiatives and projects, the University will continue to
exercise prudence and caution in its financial planning,
ensuring that adequate resources are available for future
development.

Stephen YIU Kin-Wah
Treasurer of the University
28 October 2024
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To : The Council of The Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology (the
“University”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on
pages 9 to 62, which comprise the consolidated balance
sheet as at 30 June 2024, the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statements of
changes in fund balances and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, comprising material
accounting policy information and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 30 June 2024, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology Ordinance ("The HKUST Ordinance").

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.



e BERR R HSE IR E DIMIER

REREEAHEMEE AR - HAEE BEEEE
HNIER - BN EREGE B R R EET
e o

TSR EV B HRRVE R mEHAEE - B
IR % FHAS B 3R A B e -

e MEsrargaRRnE  RMNEEEMHHE
HAfEE - FIBET > FEHEAME SR GRS
BRI M EE B TR T A EE A
il P AL BRSSO  FL

ENBMIES TR > QRFFERHEMEEFE
EASERAL - MR ERELEE - fEE)TH - 3K
A ER SR -

REWEG N BN RGBT BERFARRNE
£

REREGAARIRBEE RGN GRAN (B
MR A A IR RO R RO B E T
ERVER AR - WEHHR R REGESMHHRE
F AT (A F DA R e B S T R X B A S R e
PRy BRI &R -

FEREFSF A BRI - S AR R R
KCERYEET] > AR T B B B A AR
FIH > DRI s st & - IREE S A

BRI AR R RS SO A T AT
T

FiZ B E B TR
TRIVELE -

SEEAI B A

Information other than the consolidated financial
statements and auditor's report thereon

The Council of the University is responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the
information included in the treasurer’s report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibilities of the Council and the Audit Committee
of the University for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The Council of the University is responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA and the HKUST Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the Council determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
Council is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the Council either intends to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Council is assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging its responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with the HKUST Ordinance and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional ~ judgement and maintain  professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the Council.
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e Conclude on the appropriateness of the Council’s use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee of the
University regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence and, where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 28 October 2024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

2024 2023
{3 BEET BHETT
Notes $million $million
A
Income
BUR & Bh Rk 3.1 3,560 3,262
Government Subventions and Grants
B SRR R H A 1,716 1,594
Tuition, Programs and Other Fees
FERFEEWA 32 1,089 807
Interest and Net Investment Income
HPUERR 163 126
Donations and Benefactions
B BN RS AT A 33 616 563
Auxiliary Services and Other Income
W H RIS A RS 16/25.13 373 363
Transfers from Deferred Capital Funds
7,517 6,715
FAXZ 35
Expenditure
2 - Bl RS
Teaching, Learning and Research
BERRTE 3,978 3,487
Teaching and Research
HtE 118 120
Library
B AR 233 133
Central Computing Facilities
FAth 2 2R AR TS 139 123
Other Academic Services
4,468 3,863
R 4%
Institutional Support
B R — R 546 473
Management and General
e A E A 900 878
Premises and Related Expenses
B4 R — B E RS 398 323
Student and General Education Services
FAtr 5 32 23
Other Activities
1,876 1,697
6,344 5,560
FAEFERERR 1,173 1,155

Surplus from operation for the year
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (CONT’D)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

PGl e A S a s L4
Share of Result of an Associate

KR ERRRIA AR

Surplus for the year before tax

HiH

Tax

REERR AR

Surplus for the year after tax

ERZHA2HERRE

Other comprehensive income for the year

s B 2 Y AR BASZHIHE ¢
Item that may be reclassified subsequently to income and
expenditure:

HNIEHATE 2 7288

Exchange differences arising from translation

A EIEER BB SCIHE -

Item that will not be reclassified to income and expenditure:

HOANHEEE B AM 2 HU Y RIS R T
ZEF

Unrealised gain on equity securities at fair value
through other comprehensive income

FENEHEIREER

Total comprehensive income for the year

BiEz(8):

Transfers to / (from):

BEgEs
UGC Funds

PR E
Restricted Funds

Hith B
Other Funds

10

2024 2023
FeaE BETT BHET
Notes Smillion $million
10 (10) 5
1,163 1,160
5 ey ()
1,162 1,159
25.17(b) ) (24)
ey (24)
285 78
284 54
1,446 1,213
344 436
152 54
950 723
1,446 1,213
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 30 JUNE 2024
2024 2023
[ BET BET
Notes $million $million
JERBEE
Non-Current Assets
YISt ~ WS st 6 8,102 7,350
Property, Plant and Equipment
&R 7 15 16
Intangible Assets
A E 8 92 16
Right-of-use Assets
HATEE B HM R I Y IR % & 9 897 605
Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income
BN HEEBWCRIR B EE 9 11,500 10,122
Financial Assets at Fair Value through Income and Expenditure
R ERE 10 82 95
Interest in an Associate
[R5 H 8 28 =8 H 2 & iR 12 0 41
Bank Deposits with Original Maturity over Three Months
20,688 18,245
ETEE
Current Assets
f78 1 1
Inventories
JEWHRK S TR FOR 11 784 656
Accounts Receivable and Prepayments
JFE H A =8 A 2 e 12 1,855 2,339
Bank Deposits with Original Maturity over Three Months
e AT 12 1,100 1,444
Cash and Cash Equivalents
3,740 4,440
RETAE
Current Liabilities
e IS T EE 13 1,107 1,052
Accounts Payable and Accruals
HE&RH 8 14 11
Lease Liabilities
Gt 14 181 169
Provision for Staff Benefits
PRAEULZS 15 1,757 2,349
Deferred Income
JEASHIH 1 1
Tax Payable
3,060 3,582
RETEEFE 680 858
Net Current Assets
HERERRSAE 21,368 19,103

Total Assets Less Current Liabilities

11
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Non-Current Liabilities

eI R e R 2

Accounts Payable and Accruals
THEAME

Lease Liabilities

Bk BRI

Provision for Staff Benefits

SEIENS
Deferred Income

Deferred Capital Funds

HEFE
NET ASSETS

BEEEE
UGC Funds

PR MRS
Restricted Funds

HA S
Other Funds

o
TOTAL FUNDS

R E 712024510 H 28 HAZ AR Bl
Approved by the Council on 28 October 2024

i
AR

Stephen YIU Kin-Wah

GEREEARR (8D

202446 H30H
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (CONT’D)
AS AT 30 JUNE 2024
2024 2023
s HEITT BHET
Notes $million $million

13 84 47

8 75 6

14 52 38

15 617 611

16 5,913 5,220

6,741 5,922

14,627 13,181

17 4,629 4,285

17 2,120 1,963

17 7,878 6,933

14,627 13,181

EEEAN EEE|
Mt Efe& (178D
Nancy IP Yuk-Yu TAM Kar-Yan
President Vice-President for

Treasurer of the University

12

Administration and Business




SReEoBER

BE20244E6 H30H LR

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

202247 H 1 H 2 464
Balance as at 1 July 2022

FNEEG / (R4l 443

Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year

R IE Y RE T

Surplus for the year after tax

Hittemdes / (k)

Other comprehensive income / (loss)

N HEE R A 2 U s YRR A SE 25 R BB 2 B A
Unrealised gain on equity securities at fair value through
other comprehensive income

SN A2

Exchange differences arising from translation

AR
Inter-fund transfer

20234E6 F30 H K20234E7 B 1 H > 4568
Balance as at 30 June 2023 and 1 July 2023

FEREEIRES / (L) 4%

Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year

REEFERUR B bR

Surplus for the year after tax

Hitr 2w / (Rt

Other comprehensive income / (loss)

A B BB A A T U TR RE B 5 R B Bl
Unrealised gain on equity securities at fair value through
other comprehensive income

SN R A2

Exchange differences arising from translation
-t
Inter-fund transfer

20244E6 H30H 2 4565
Balance as at 30 June 2024

13

PRI
BEEEE Restricted HirEs =]
UGC Funds Funds Other Funds Total Funds
BHET BET BET HETT
$million $million $million $million

(FfF&E17) (FfF&E17) (Ff&E17)
(Note 17) (Note 17) (Note 17)

3,849 1,852 6,267 11,968

436 54 669 1,159

0 0 78 78

0 0 (24) (24)

436 54 723 1,213

0 57 (57) 0

4,285 1,963 6,933 13,181

344 152 666 1,162

0 0 285 285

0 0 1 )]

344 152 950 1,446

0 5 5) 0

4,629 2,120 7,878 14,627




SEHEREIR
B 202456 300 (LA
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

2024 2023
BT HET
$million $million
BEEHCRSRE
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
AAEFERLA B R 1,163 1,160
Surplus for the year before tax
FEkS
Adjustments for:
PrEs R 529 483
Depreciation and amortisation
THE A EZ BERA 2 1
Finance cost of lease liabilities
VY - TR Rt 2 1Rk 0 5
Loss on disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment
FIRFOFEE WA (1,089) (807)
Interest and net investment income
Pl A Bl ECE 4T 10 5)
Share of results of an associate
R EARS (373) (363)
Transfers from deferred capital funds
Rt FERZ ERp] = M H 2 242 474
Operating cash flow before movements in working capital
FESTHRERK R P R 2 B (149) (229)
Increase in accounts receivable and prepayments
FETHRRK R st 2 F 2 s /- i) 118 (24)
Increase/ (Decrease) in accounts payable and accruals
W CRD) 3 (329) 353
(Decrease)/ Increase in deferred income
2o E e /. G 26 (25)
Increase/ (Decrease) in provision for staff benefits
BEEG RS (RE) /1 RA 92) 549
Cash (Used in)/ Generated from Operating Activities
SRR SEATER O] 0
China corporate income tax paid
SATEAERSH 0 0
Hong Kong profits tax paid
BEEESRS (RE) /1 RA 93) 549

Net Cash (Used in)/ Generated from Operating Activities

14



Salieng® (&)
BZE20244E6 30 (LR

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONT’D)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

REEGHERE

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

WEESE ~ TR Rast

Payment for purchase of property, plant and equipment

B AE
Payment for purchase of intangible assets

JFE A = (8 A 2 el 5
Decrease in bank deposits with original maturity over three months

WA PEEBEA Y IR MBS EE

Purchase of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

WA TPEEBWCEIR . TR E

Purchase of financial assets at fair value through income and expenditure

T RAT T B 2 B A RS R A

Proceeds from redemption of financial assets at amortised cost

HERAPEEBYC SR B EE Z WA
Proceeds from sale of financial assets at fair value through income and
expenditure

B A R EUA

Interest and investment income received

BEEEPH SR
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities

BEEHBSRE

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

FALAREE Y5 - BRES R i R 2 2 B RO AR A
Subventions and grants and donations received for purchase of property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets

YTHEAE
Payment of lease liabilities

REEENFRERA

Net Cash Generated from Financing Activities

He R EFHESZF D) #in

Net (Decrease)/ Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents

FHZHERFERE
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Year

ERSu e
Effect of Foreign Exchange Rate Changes

HFERZBSREERE
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Year

15

2024 2023
HET HETT
$million $million
(1,293) (860)
)] 10
525 928
6 ®
(2,263) (1,515)
0 39
1,861 522
133 79
(1,050) (826)
811 400
(12 (16)
799 384
(344) 107
1,444 1,351
0 (14)
1,100 1,444
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

— R
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GENERAL INFORMATION

The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology is
incorporated under The Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology Ordinance (Chapter 1141, Laws of Hong
Kong) as a technological university dedicated to the
advancement of learning and scholarship, with special
emphasis on research, postgraduate education, and close
collaboration with business and industry. The principal
activities and other particulars of the University’s
subsidiaries are set out in Note 22.

The University’s registered address and principal place of
operation is Clear Water Bay, Hong Kong.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HKD”), which is the Group’s
presentation currency. These consolidated financial
statements were approved for issue by the Council on 28
October 2024.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), Cost
Allocation Guidelines for UGC funded and non-UGC
funded Activities (“the Guidelines”), and the Statement of
Recommended Practice (“SORP”) for institutions funded
by the University Grants Committee (“UGC”) in Hong
Kong.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on a going concern basis under the historical cost
convention, except for the following assets which are
stated at fair value:

— financial assets at fair value through income and
expenditure

— financial assets at fair value other

comprehensive income

through

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in Note
24.

Financial statements for the University have been
prepared separately.



3.

SR B FHSE
INCOME AND EXPENDITURE BY SEGMENT

(a) SRASEBCL (BRR)

Consolidated Segment Income and Expenditure (By function)

2024 2023
ag:iLivd Sz
Eoiey G BEEY 3o ]
BBEED Inter-segment HEEE) Inter-segment
UGC-Funded FEBREGHEED Transaction IRUEET UGC-Funded FEBREGHEED Transaction JRYEET
Activities Non-UGC Funded Activities Elimination Net Total Activities Non-UGC Funded Activities Elimination Net Total
HAREFE HRABEZHE
EBRFEER PSR FrisHmoERy HAtnEs) EEREER FUER Ziks = HAthiERy
Self-financing Research Donation Other INEF Self-financing Research Donation Other Nt
CPEP Activities Activities Activities Activities Sub-total CPEP Activities Activities Activities Activities Sub-total
BT HETT BET HET BET BET BET BET HET HET BET HET BETT HET HET BETT
$million $million $million $million $million $million $million $million $million $million $million $million $million $million $million $million
Gb) (RE)
(Note) (Note)
WA
Income
BUR B R (L 3.1) 3,264 0 66 0 230 296 0 3,560 2,998 0 86 0 178 264 0 3,262
Government subventions and grants (Note 3.1)
R SRAR R CHATCE 771 945 0 0 0 945 0 1,716 734 860 0 0 0 860 0 1,594
Tuition, programs and other fees
FIEROFEEUA (53 3.2) 449 26 0 289 325 640 0 1,089 335 16 0 212 244 472 0 807
Interest and net investment income (Note 3.2)
SRR 0 0 0 163 0 163 0 163 0 0 0 126 0 126 0 126
Donations and benefactions
RIS B AU A (Fff5E 3.3) 181 21 145 1 405 572 (137) 616 152 12 140 16 357 525 (114) 563
Auxiliary services and other income (Note 3.3)
R R IE A AR 264 0 17 89 3 109 0 373 271 0 16 76 0 92 0 363
Transfers from deferred capital funds
4,929 992 228 542 963 2,725 (137) 7,517 4,490 888 242 430 779 2,339 (114) 6,715
B (BifEE 3.5)
Expenditure (Note 3.5)
HEE ~ Bl RS
Teaching, Learning and Research
B 5T 3,083 494 226 60 188 968 (73) 3,978 2,650 385 218 150 156 909 (72) 3,487
Teaching and research
I 2 B 95 23 0 0 0 23 0 118 94 24 0 1 1 26 0 120
Library
R R 147 16 1 69 0 86 0 233 117 14 1 0 1 16 0 133
Central computing facilities
HANBER IR 110 1 1 6 22 30 1) 139 99 1 0 4 19 24 0 123
Other academic services
RS 4%
Institutional Support
B R — B 345 31 1 41 188 261 (60) 546 300 33 2 30 147 212 39) 473
Management and general
e A e 648 39 4 104 105 252 0 900 659 42 4 96 77 219 0 878
Premises and related expenses
B4 R—RBE RS 157 14 0 30 200 244 3) 398 135 14 0 28 149 191 3) 323
Student and general education services
HoAthyEBh 0 0 0 0 32 32 0 32 0 0 0 0 23 23 0 23
Other activities
4,585 618 233 310 735 1,896 (137) 6,344 4,054 513 225 309 573 1,620 (114) 5,560
AEEBRERS /(BB 344 374 5) 232 228 829 0 1,173 436 375 17 121 206 719 0 1,155
Surplus/(Deficit) from operation for the year
PTG A TR A 0 0 0 0 (10) (10) 0 (10) 0 0 0 0 5 5 0 5
Share of result of an associate
e 0 0 0 0 (1) (1) 0 (1) 0 0 0 0 (1) (€3] 0 (1)
Tax
REERBEE (BB 344 374 %) 232 217 818 0 1,162 436 375 17 121 210 723 0 1,159
Surplus / (Deficit) for the year after tax
REERKES (BE) @EE
Surplus / (Deficit) for the year after tax transferred to:
BagEe 344 0 0 0 0 0 (] 344 436 0 0 0 0 0 0 436
UGC Funds
PRI 0 0 0 152 0 152 0 152 0 0 0 54 0 54 0 54
Restricted Funds
HAtr RS 0 374 (5) 80 217 666 0 666 0 375 17 67 210 669 0 669
Other Funds
344 374 (5) 232 217 818 0 1,162 436 375 17 121 210 723 0 1,159
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3. SEWAREX (8
INCOME AND EXPENDITURE BY SEGMENT (CONT’D)

(b)  ERENHEEY GREEHER)

Consolidated Segment Expenditure (By accounting nature)

2024 2023
Sz ap:iiipd
BEE XS HEH BEY it
LS Inter-segment EBhEE) Inter-segment
UGC-Funded JERE B EE) Transaction Pt Eog UGC-Funded JERE B EE) Transaction Pt
Activities Non-UGC Funded Activities Elimination Net Total Activities Non-UGC Funded Activities Elimination Net Total
BAREZFE BHREEZRE
EEBFEIEE) BHEES) FrisEREE) FHAEE) EBREEE FHEE) s HsoEE) HAtEE)
Self-financing Research Donation Other JNet Self-financing Research Donation Other JNET
CPEP Activities Activities Activities Activities Sub-total CPEP Activities Activities Activities Activities Sub-total
EET BET BET BET BET BET HET HET HET BEHET EHET HET BET BET BET BET
$million $million $million $million $million $million $million $million $million $million $million $million $million $million $million $million
&3 (&)
(Note) (Note)
Bz (FfsE3.5)
Expenditure (Note 3.5)
T B kEF 2,722 375 78 44 154 651 0 3,373 2,412 320 76 46 132 574 1) 2,985
Salaries and benefits
HoAth 2 ST HY 1,603 219 129 138 490 976 (137) 2,442 1,383 168 124 146 384 822 (113) 2,092
Other operating expenses
HTHE R SN 260 24 26 128 91 269 0 529 259 25 25 117 57 224 0 483
Depreciation and amortisation
Ll 4,585 618 233 310 735 1,896 (137) 6,344 4,054 513 225 309 573 1,620 (114) 5,560
Total Expenditure
i DB R G T EAIEAE e FEE -
Note: Inter-segment transactions mainly included internal rental transactions.
- o BB A Z IR SR BRI A E R BRI T £ AR B B T A BRI E 8 B ZHLE TR
Remarks: Disclosures regarding segment reporting are included as a requirement of the Statement of Recommended Practice for the UGC-Funded Institutions and are not designed to fully comply with the requirements of HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments”.

o KECEHEKEGEL TR ETRITS] ( TR 55, )
Cost Allocation Guidelines for UGC-funded and non-UGC-funded activities (“the Guidelines”)

TR B IR GT ) FBAE BT
The Group follows the Guidelines issued by the UGC to allocate their costs, which is summarised as follows:

— KBS T2 BT R R AR ETHE A T L - T A (EITERZ s -

There should be no hidden subsidy to avoid dilution of UGC-funded resources and unfair competition with the private sector;

— PTH B E TR IR 5 5B 2 BURAE -

All direct costs which can be separately attributable to specific activities should be fully taken up and borne by such activities;

— I TR R E TR T RS ~ [T RIEIIIRTS) - #F LR AT B AL 1R GG ) PRI R0 SRR IR B

All indirect costs, such as centrally provided facilities, administrative and support services, which cannot be separately attributable to specific activities, are allocated as shared costs to UGC and non-UGC segments based on cost allocation methodologies set out in the Guidelines.

18
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BURFB BN BBk
GOVERNMENT SUBVENTIONS AND GRANTS

2024 2023
BET BET
$million $million
PAGRBLER O ERR (I 15) 2,566 2,418
UGC recurrent block grant (Note 15)
FEGREREK (i 15) 360 295
UGC earmarked grants (Note 15)
BURFA BT e (Mt 15) 547 466
Earmarked grants from government agencies (Note 15)
BCH Rk b B BURTaRG (FEE) 1 15
Matching grants and other government subsidies (Note)
WrFEECEHRER (FfaE 15) 39 20
Research matching grants (Note 15)
R M 47 48
Rates and government rent refunds
3,560 3,262
WIaE: RERY o BRI LI FE & A m B #HEL (20234 - %) -
Note : No matching grants were launched by the government for UGC funded activities during the year (2023: Nil).
FIE PO EEWA
INTEREST AND NET INVESTMENT INCOME
2024 2023
BET BET
$million $million
FLEHA 112 101
Interest income
HANHEBEBWCGURZ B & 2 AP EET) (D) 976 705
Change in fair value of financial assets at fair value through income and expenditure (Note)
FANHE B EA TS VIR Z B &R Z A 1 1
Investment income on financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
1,089 807
Wit SRS RAREEH 2 fk5 » AR N BT -
Note : Amounts included realised / unrealised gain or loss and before deduction of fund management fee.
BB RS B H AU A
AUXILIARY SERVICES AND OTHER INCOME
2024 2023
BET BET
$million $million
REEY 135 132
Research contracts
B G 169 152
Student hostels
FHEUA 29 33
Rental income
FUW RS T 53 49
Rental contribution from staff
MU ~ THE WA B BAE B 84 79
Services fees, workshop income and other sponsorships
HE®Y (M 15) 102 91
Project sponsorships (Note 15)
HEEUA 44 27
Miscellaneous
616 563
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3.4 WS
DISAGGREGATION OF REVENUE

2024
FE &G
Revenue from contracts with customers
RS FEh T R E HAACH U HaEH
recognised at a recognised over Revenue from Total
point in time time other sources
HETT HETT HETT HETT
$million $million $million $million
BN &R Bk 0 0 3,560 3,560
Government subventions and grants
B SR R MG E 0 1,716 0 1,716
Tuition, programs and other fees
FE BB WA 0 0 1,089 1,089
Interest and net investment income
FNFRAERK 0 0 163 163
Donations and benefactions
i Bh AR e B A 44 188 384 616
Auxiliary services and other income
T 5 IRAE A AL 0 0 373 373
Transfers from deferred capital funds
44 1,904 5,569 7,517
2023
& E &8
Revenue from contracts with customers
RS FEh T R E HAACT U HaEH
recognised at a recognised over Revenue from Total
point in time time other sources
HETT HETT HETT HETT
$million $million $million $million
BURF &R B K 0 0 3,262 3,262
Government subventions and grants
B SR R MG E 0 1,594 0 1,594
Tuition, programs and other fees
IR FOFHEE WA 0 0 807 807
Interest and net investment income
P iz 0 0 126 126
Donations and benefactions
EBh AR K B A 21 179 363 563
Auxiliary services and other income
T 5 IRAE A AL 0 0 363 363
Transfers from deferred capital funds
21 1,773 4,921 6,715

20




35 BX

EXPENDITURE

£E/¥ / Year 2024
B2 - BTN
Teaching, Learning and Research
BER RS
Teaching and research
B e
Library
rho R (A
Central computing facilities
HoABERAR
Other academic services
/et
Sub-total
BHR
Institutional Support
Y E S
Management and general
& RARE A
Premises and related expenses
B R — B E RS
Student and general education services
HAES)
Other activities
/et
Sub-total
HERSZ

Total Expenditure

£E/F / Year 2023
B - BRI

Teaching, Learning and Research
BER RIS
Teaching and research
B8
Library
rho R (A
Central computing facilities
HoA BERAR
Other academic services
/et
Sub-total
BHR
Institutional Support
B R
Management and general
& RARE A
Premises and related expenses
B R — B E RS
Student and general education services
HAES)
Other activities
/et
Sub-total
HERSZ

Total Expenditure

FAtrE S H PR
Bt AR Other Depreciation
Salaries and Operating and Qs
Benefits Expenses Amortisation Total
BET BET BT BET
$million $million $million $million
2,542 1,238 198 3,978
60 57 1 118
86 128 19 233
102 36 1 139
2,790 1,459 219 4,468
299 239 8 546
188 412 300 900
95 301 2 398
1 31 0 32
583 983 310 1,876
3,373 2,442 529 6,344
2,207 1,112 168 3,487
61 58 1 120
81 36 16 133
92 29 2 123
2,441 1,235 187 3,863
272 193 8 473
181 412 285 878
90 230 3 323
1 22 0 23
544 857 296 1,697
2,985 2,092 483 5,560

Hre B A RS R SUE EROR R St BRI 2 B Rt (20234 —@ALT—HEIT)
Included in salaries and benefits are the Group’s contributions towards defined contribution retirement benefits schemes totalling $200 million (2023: $191

million) .
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A B TR
REMUNERATION OF HIGHER PAID STAFF

BTHH
Number of Employees
2024 2023

FHEE

Annual Equivalent Remuneration

HKS 1,800,001 - 1,950,000 69 54
HKS 1,950,001 - 2,100,000 49 60
HKS 2,100,001 - 2,250,000 54 62
HKS 2,250,001 - 2,400,000 44 41
HKS 2,400,001 - 2,550,000 36 31
HKS$ 2,550,001 - 2,700,000 29 23
HKS 2,700,001 - 2,850,000 23 22
HKS 2,850,001 - 3,000,000 15 7
HKS$ 3,000,001 - 3,150,000 11 14
HKS 3,150,001 - 3,300,000 9 9
HKS 3,300,001 - 3,450,000 14 9
HKS 3,450,001 - 3,600,000 5 11
HKS$ 3,600,001 - 3,750,000 6 4
HKS 3,750,001 - 3,900,000 10 3
HKS 3,900,001 - 4,050,000 3 2
HKS 4,050,001 - 4,200,000 5 5
HKS 4,200,001 - 4,350,000 6 3
HKS 4,350,001 - 4,500,000 2 4
HKS 4,500,001 - 4,650,000 4 0
HKS 4,650,001 - 4,800,000 1 0
HKS 4,800,001 - 4,950,000 0 3
HKS 4,950,001 - 5,100,000 2 2
HK$ 5,100,001 - 5,250,000 1 0
HKS 5,250,001 - 5,400,000 1 0
HKS$ 5,400,001 - 5,550,000 2 0
HK$ 5,550,001 - 5,700,000 1 1
HK$ 6,000,001 - 6,150,000 0 1
HKS$ 7,050,001 - 7,200,000 1 0

FriFEITRrT ~ & ~ BRIV ~ FE L Z B ~ [ZEREMER - EAEE
HigZd BT /E Rt L & T BB AR 1 (EE P E i e < SR AR (E 7 5
Remuneration includes salaries, gratuities, contributions to retirement schemes, consultancy fees paid by
the Group, housing and other benefits. For staff who are provided with quarters, their housing benefits are
calculated by reference to the rateable values assessed by the Rating and Valuation Department of the
Government of The Hong Kong Special Administrative Region.
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HR
TAX

Sre e RNEIFTER R

Income tax in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income represents:

2024 2023
BHETT HET
$million $million

RIS 1 0
Hong Kong profits tax
B R ZEFTIEA 0 1
China corporate income tax

1 1

REFFERIE (RUHBHRET) 56 88 iR L HUESER BT HIH - BRI TR IR L -
No tax is provided for operations of the University that meet the exemption criteria under Section 88 of the
Inland Revenue Ordinance.

EEEBNBAT T EENSHRETRRGTH - SENBATLI16.5% (20234 1 16.5%) HIMRGTHEES
FHR - SRy o BI85 54% T B TR S A BRI DR R R 3 -

Hong Kong subsidiaries of the Group are subject to Hong Kong profits tax. The provision for Hong Kong profits
tax is calculated at 16.5% (2023: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits of these subsidiaries for the year.
Tax for the PRC subsidiaries of the Group is charged at the appropriate prevailing rates of tax in the PRC.

& B R A T RE AR SR IE R A T A H 4 » SEEA MERR IR AU A A © AR E 2 B 8 S B A T
P IRIERIAE E R — T EH =187T (20234 1 —T=FHt#T) » HRKE BREHRINTILE AT
(20234 : LWTEEETT) - ZEDENEL SRS IR E2S 12 2029F Frili i E(d] -

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried forward to the extent that the realisation of the
related tax benefit through future taxable profits is probable. The PRC subsidiaries of the Group have not
recognised deferred income tax assets of approximately $17.3 million (2023: $13.7 million) in respect of
cumulative losses amounting to approximately $69.6 million (2023: $57.0 million). The tax losses for the PRC
subsidiaries will expire on various dates up to 2029.
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6.

YIS ~ WER AR

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

5%
COST

20224E7H 1 H 2 G565
Balance as at 1 July 2022

NE
Additions

[ c4
Transfers

iR

Disposals

VRS0 724

Exchange translation difference

2023%E6 H30H KT H 1 H 2 &k
Balance as at 30 June and 1 July 2023

NE
Additions

28]
Transfers
HHURK
Disposals

VEE S22 4

Exchange translation difference

202446 H30H > &%
Balance as at 30 June 2024

RS
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

20224E7H 1 H 2 458k
Balance as at 1 July 2022

SR AT
Charge for the year

HURE

Disposals

2023%E6 H30H K TH 1 H 2 &tk
Balance as at 30 June and 1 July 2023

RS ZATE
Charge for the year

HURE

Disposals

202446 H30H > &%
Balance as at 30 June 2024

MEEDRE
NET BOOK VALUE

202446 H30H > &%
Balance as at 30 June 2024

202346 H30H 2 4564
Balance as at 30 June 2023

BFEE - KB
R RE ARG
Building
improvements,
pi=uw major BRE R
i Construction equipment and Fixtures and st
Buildings in progress services systems equipment Total
BEETT EET BHETL HETT EETT
$million $million $million $million $million
7,209 697 1,819 2,699 12,424
7 643 9 229 388
0 (415) 415 0 0
0 0 0 (146) (146)
6) 0 6) ) (13)
7,210 925 2,237 2,781 13,153
1 788 3 468 1,260
0 (216) 216 0 0
0 0 0 (108) (108)
0 0 0 @) @))
7,211 1,497 2,456 3,140 14,304
2,941 0 363 2,182 5,486
145 0 106 207 458
0 0 0 (141) (141)
3,086 0 469 2,248 5,803
145 0 123 239 507
0 0 0 (108) (108)
3,231 0 592 2,379 6,202
3,980 1,497 1,864 761 8,102
4,124 925 1,768 533 7,350
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I3k ~ Mes heaetl (81
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONT’D)

RERCEBEERPERLNTAHEZ 13 EERFITREENT ( T EEFERN, ) #HREHe
REITA G - 220476 H30H IF - RIEMETH EAUESOF ST HITE -

The University campus is situated on approximately 60 hectares of land in Sai Kung under lease from the
Government of The Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (“HKSAR”) at a nominal rent for 58 years
through 30 June 2047. The campus buildings are depreciated on a straight-line basis over 50 years.

FYIHBUT S B S T R E R @ A =B REANTIERES (R AIRAE Rt
TUH =PIk S E AR R 2 ] - BRI 4E - 2205746 H 28 H Ik - 3% ST R Tl

LPEHETRITES -

A piece of land situated at Shenzhen of approximately 7,437 square metres was granted at a nominal amount
to HKUST R&D Corporation (Shenzhen) Limited, a subsidiary of the Group, by the Shenzhen Municipal
Government for the construction of an Industry-Education-Research base for 50 years through 28 June 2057.
The respective building is depreciated over the remaining lease term.

AR EBUFEREEE I T RE B AL R B =T U E L5k Z it R Bl — R B g
A RIATLAA » 220624F12H20H 1F © 32 ST B AN ETRSOF T HATES -

A piece of land situated in Tseung Kwan O of approximately 3,490 square metres was granted to the
University by the Government of the HKSAR at a nominal rent for the construction of a student hostel for a
lease of 50 years up to 20 December 2062. The respective building is depreciated on a straight-line basis
over 50 years.

PLEZW3E ~ e R =G ST AR IRITEE A0 T

The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated over their estimated useful lives as follows:

MEFEHE ~ RIS Rt thi 250 204

Building improvements, major equipment and services systems 20 years

R B st THHAFHASUZE4F - DI Ryt

Fixtures and equipment Shorter of the projects lives or 4-10
years
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS

D2
COST

20225ETH 1 H 2 456k
Balance as at 1 July 2022

NE
Additions

2023 F6 H30H KTH1H 2 456k
Balance as at 30 June and 1 July 2023

NE
Additions

20245E6 H30H > 4565
Balance as at 30 June 2024

B9
AMORTISATION

202207 H 1 H 2 4565
Balance as at 1 July 2022

AR

Amortisation charge for the year

2023 F6 H30H K TH1H 2 &6k
Balance as at 30 June and 1 July 2023

AR

Amortisation charge for the year

20244E6 H30H 2~ 4565
Balance as at 30 June 2024

ARTEFE
NET BOOK VALUE

20244E6 H30H 2 4565
Balance as at 30 June 2024

20235E6 H30H Z 4565
Balance as at 30 June 2023

BISIRE A ESETE 25%:HE Y -

Computer software is amortised on a straight-line basis at 25% per annum.
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b

Computer software

BHET

$million

132

10

142

149

116

10

126

134

15

16




HE

LEASES

2024 2023
BHET BHET

$million $million

EFIEEE

Right-of-use assets

Yy

92 16

Buildings

THEAR

Lease liabilities

SRENTHE A 14 11

Current lease liabilities

IR EEE 75 6

Non-current lease liabilities

89 17

HERFEFEEDETERA R BEAL -

The lease liabilities are mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars or Renminbi.

&R E R IR A B B4

Amounts related to leases recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income

reE 14 15
Depreciation
RIE A 2 1
Finance cost

AR BB 11 1

Expenses relating to short-term leases

27 17

SR BRI AR BUR B R A0 T H AR

The Group’s leasing activities as lessees and how these are accounted for

EEFHAAEYE - A G R—Z0UEREERL - AL S aEE SAYHIRE IR IE RAH BUHIRIEEEE - S EEH S5
YR HRHE R S REEE G TR - T (BRI IR - MBS R R - THE R e B B2 - P
BHAEA ERLE S A IE A -

The Group leases various buildings. Rental contracts are typically made for fixed periods of 1 to 4 years. Some leases include an
option to renew the lease for an additional period after the end of the contract term. The Group assess at lease commencement date
whether it is reasonably certain to exercise the extension options. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a
range of different terms and conditions. The lease agreements do not impose any onerous covenants. Leased assets will not be used as
security for borrowing purposes.

RS g E AN A FEIR

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

2024 2023
BET HET
$million $million
THI1HZ 458% 17 32
Balance as at 1 July
WE 82 0
Addition
IR BRE R 2 1
Non-cash finance cost
Eantih- el | (12) (16)
Payment of lease liabilities
6 H30H &R 89 17

Balance as at 30 June
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9.

BRI B E
FINANCIAL ASSETS RELATING TO INVESTMENTS

FeAERE 75
Equity securities

bR -

Listed equity securities, at market value

IR B S o HAEE (EE 2)

Unlisted equity securities, at fair value (Note a)

MR EEEAMENZES

Presentation in the consolidated balance sheet

A HES B EEEY IR B S E

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income

AHEEBBCGESR B ERE (i b)

Financial assets at fair value through income and expenditure (Note b)

TR
Listed equity funds

I B
Unlisted equity funds

EHEEYAZ S

Listed fixed income funds

I EEEY Az S

Unlisted fixed income funds

JE B EYHES

Unlisted real assets funds

Ik b
Unlisted hedge funds

FEEHRAIE

Unlisted private investments

TR R
Listed convertible bonds

JE LA (I a)

Unlisted convertible notes (Note a)

PlE=8s g E EE LB T R R AL -

The above three categories of financial assets are mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars and United States dollars.

Wit
Notes :
(a) ZNFETIZZRAITHI GITIS LRSI T 1T R AL A B 2 T BT~ BB F i s 77 50 2 R &

()

2024 2023
BET BET
$million $million
268 17
629 588
897 605
897 605
447 619
3,838 3,381
2,196 829
1,476 2,224
984 835
1,468 1,245
1,065 962
18 17
8 10
11,500 10,122

The fair value was determined by reference to the recent transaction price, and financial models based on discounted cash flow analysis, earnings multiple and

net equity method with reference to market valuations for similar entities.

PRI T H e A B R (T E

The fair value was determined by reference to bid prices quoted in active markets or by fund managers.
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10. PAEEEATEIRER
INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

2024 2023
BEETT BETT
$million $million
Frfdis F &2 82 95
Share of net assets
AR
£ Proportion of
Lot SRR B iR Nominal Value of
BB/ E TR Form of Place of Issued Capital BERAER
Name of Business Incorporation Held by Class of FEEE)
Associate Structure and Operation the Group Shares Held Principal Activity
GRS A E % YN LA rpE \ R 33% HEAEER ARG - BEER AT Rt
WHFERIETE B - Bl S A
BRATBEL -
PKU-HKUST Institutional People’s Republic Capital To engage in technology
Shenzhen-Hong Organization of China Contribution commercialization, incubation of start-
Kong Institution up companies, provision of research

and technology management services,
training of senior management and
administrative executives.

2024 2023
&L &L

$million $million

N ST Ryl /8 B 2 I TS IR
The summarised financial information in respect of the associate is set out below:

6 H30H 48 283 307
Total assets as at 30 June

A6 H30H4EE (33) (18)
Total liabilities as at 30 June

76 H30HBEFHE 250 289

Net assets as at 30 June

746 530 H R BB E A 5] 2 B2 FHE 82 95

Group’s share of net assets of the associate as at 30 June

A HE 75 71

Turnover for the year

KAERE (fgat) LAl (30) 15
(Loss)/ Profit for the year

SEEIE LI LN SR (10) 5
Group’s share of results of the associate for the year

BRI RETE

Reconciliation to share of net assets:

SUERY=! 289 303
As at 1 July

KR (54l N (30) 15
(Loss)/Profit for the year

Heoric (®) “
Funds distributed

EZR 1 (25)

Exchange translation difference

6 H30H 250 289
As at 30 June

SEHFEL % 33% 33%
Group’s share in %

EEELE A E 2 EEFE 82 95
Group’s share of net assets of the associate
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FEUS AR B TR KR
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND PREPAYMENTS

2024 2023

BH&T BET

$Smillion $million
JEVTHESRR 716 536
Accounts receivable
TR FRIE e i 68 120
Prepayments and deposits

784 656

o KREEEATAMGRSEIEIGNFEL L » DB 2 TR 1E 265180 -

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach using a lifetime expected loss allowance to
measure loss allowance of accounts receivables.

o REtETHHIGEHER  BUCREZELE G SRR a H B F 4 - TR R EE
HIMRIBE SRR - WAt ZZ B AR N2 E Al B AT 2ok 2 MRV THIE I TR (HEEAR
) FA20245E6 30  SERTREIES IR ER - MERSUBUOR RIS R G - AEEERZ S
SEERRFA EHER -
To measure the expected credit losses, account receivables have been grouped based on shared
credit risk characteristics and the days past due. The expected loss rates are estimated based on
the corresponding historical credit losses experienced, adjusted with the expected change between
current and forward looking information on macroeconomic factors, if material. As at 30 June
2024, no loss allowance is required on these accounts receivable as the expected credit losses are
immaterial. The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

®  REMHHYEWARR I SRR E R MBI — U] o TR ROE AN ] — A P iR R B
% o
The majority of accounts receivable are with no fixed terms of payment and are expected to be
recoverable within one year. Prepayments are expected to be recognised as expenses within one
year.

o EUGERK » RN FOE M FRLUETT R FTT R BT -
The accounts receivable and prepayments and deposits are mainly denominated in Hong Kong
dollars and United States dollars.
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12.

B KSR TR
CASH AND DEPOSITS WITH BANKS

JEREIHH H i =8 B 2 B
Bank Deposits with Original Maturity over Three Months

JREE Y

Current portion

By

Non-Current portion

B B F R

Cash and cash equivalents

JFEIHE R =8 5 5T Z EHIfERL

Bank deposits with original maturity within three months

TR KR T4EER
Cash at banks and in hand

b
Total

Bl RARIT AR A TS B Ty LA ¢

Cash and deposits with banks are denominated in the following currencies:

Hong Kong Dollars 37T
United States Dollars  Z£7¢

Renminbi ARk
Euro BT
Pounds Sterling i
Others HAth

31

2024 2023
BHET HET

$million $million
1,855 2,339
0 41
1.855 2.380
798 1,047
302 397
1,100 1,444
2,955 3,824
2,491 3,066
92 345
316 355
19 32
33 10
4 16
2.955 3824




13.

14.

FEMSRRAK KBS TR A
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUALS

EHIEE (FED
Contract liabilities (Note)

FE(THRRK R e 2

Accounts payable and accruals

Tk TERHIRRR MR IR B E O

Less: Non-Current portion of Accounts Payable and Accruals

FERS R FEE T B R A Eh E

Current portion of Accounts Payable and Accruals

2024 2023
HET BHEIT
$Smillion $million
614 579
577 520
1,191 1,099
(34) (47)
1,107 1,052

FETHRRR R et B ] £ LB T R BR AL

The accounts payable and accruals are mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

Vi
Note :

GRS (BHE © FUGK ~ B A T B RAE R RIS Rt © T =T8T (2023 4

HE=T2HET) aYAETHEHE - F R R -

The contract liabilities for receipts in advance and deferred revenue are recognised as revenue in the
periods when the performance obligations are fulfilled. $530 million (2023: $532 million) contract

liabilities are expected to be recognised as income within one year.

ERIET A G LA BAVAEER T RS Rl s 527 528
Revenue recognised during the year that was included in the
contract liabilities balance at the beginning of the years
BB EBARG
PROVISION FOR STAFF BENEFITS
2024 2023
BHETT BETT
$million $million
&< 134 109
Gratuities
AR S HoAtr 99 98
Leave pay and others
233 207

FETS
Payable:

—FN 181 169

Within 1 year

—F% 52 38

After 1 year

233 207
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15, RAEHES

DEFERRED INCOME
BURH IR
BEEHEEHK HEEMRR
BEE | BHEE R R Earmarked
BEERER UGC Earmarked  Grants from HE®BE)
UGC Block  Grants/ Research Government Project =14 et
Grant Matching Grants Agencies Sponsorships Donation Total
HET HET BET BET BET HEL
$million $million $million $million $million $million
20227 A1H Z 456k 0 1,612 489 182 666 2,949
Balance as at 1 July 2022
Bk / FE Z 7RH 2,538 573 540 92 425 4,168
Amount received / receivable (G3)
(Note)
AL EEEEE (5 3.1/3.3/18) (2,418) 315) (466) 1) (123) (3,413)
Credited to consolidated statement of comprehensive income (Notes
3.1/33/18)
E YRR AL S (HfEE 16) (120) (523) (47) (20) (25) (735)
Transfer to deferred capital funds (Note 16)
MR R 0 0 ) 0 0 9)
Exchange differences arising from translation
2023%E6 30H R 7H 1 H Z 456k 0 1,347 507 163 943 2,960
Balance as at 30 June and 1 July 2023
El / e 7oA 2,685 700 417 114 280 4,196
Amount received / receivable G
(Note)
FEASFE R (FEE3.1/3.3/18) (2,566) (399) (547) (102) (102) (3,716)
Credited to consolidated statement of comprehensive income (Notes
3.1/33/18)
IR AL S (M3 16) (119) (670) 8) (33) (236) (1,066)
Transfer to deferred capital funds (Note 16)
SN 22 HE 0 0 0 0 0 0
Exchange differences arising from translation
202446 H30H 2 456k 0 978 369 142 885 2,374
Balance as at 30 June 2024
RS AE
To be recognised
202346 30 H 2 4564
Balance as at 30 June 2023
—HEN 0 1,023 374 163 789 2,349
In one year
—H% 0 324 133 0 154 611
After one year
0 1,347 507 163 943 2,960
202446 30 H 2 458k
Balance as at 30 June 2024
—HEN 0 575 310 160 712 1,757
In one year
—H% 0 403 59 0 155 617
After one year
0 978 369 160 867 2,374

0 ARERFORAA (W 18)
Note: The amounts were from pledged donations (Note 18).
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16.

BIEE AR A
DEFERRED CAPITAL FUNDS

20224E7H 1 H 2 4585k
Balance as at 1 July 2022

MHETRREYIE - 1525 K S B RSR  a s i B R e s (it 15)
Amounts equivalent to additions to property, plant and equipment and computer software
transferred from deferred income (Note 15)

THETTEE R 2 FORMIR R a2 H W R
Amounts equivalent to depreciation and amortisation charges transferred to consolidated
statement of comprehensive income

P fe 2= A

Exchange translation difference

20234E6 H30H K 7H 1 H 2 458k
Balance as at 30 June and 1 July 2023

MHETRIREYIZE - 1525 K% S B RSR  a s i H R e s (FfE 15)
Amounts equivalent to additions to property, plant and equipment and computer software
transferred from deferred income (Note 15)

FHETTEE R 2 FORMIR R a2 E W R
Amounts equivalent to depreciation and amortisation charges transferred to consolidated
statement of comprehensive income

b S 2= A

Exchange translation difference

202446 H30H 4565
Balance as at 30 June 2024

HET

$million

4,852

735

(363)

)

5,220

1,066

(373)

5,913



17. HEFEFES - RS RIAES

UGC FUNDS, RESTRICTED FUNDS AND OTHER FUNDS

20224ETH 1 H 2 4564
Balance as at 1 July 2022

KRR | (B1R)

Surplus / (Deficit) for the year after tax

AN HEE A R Y RIS AR B 2
Unrealised gain on equity securities at fair value through other
comprehensive income

SN 2 AR
Exchange difference arising from translation

HgE /(2) BAEE

Transfer from / (to) capital funds

A

Inter-fund transfer

202346 H30H K7 H 1 H 2 &56%
Balance as at 30 June and 1 July 2023

RERERREE | (R

Surplus / (Deficit) for the year after tax

FEA TR B HA A R S IR A R RE S SR BB 2 B A
Unrealised gain on equity securities at fair value through other
comprehensive income

HNESHR T 22

Exchange difference arising from translation

iy ) (F) EAES
Transfer from / (to) capital funds

A

Inter-fund transfer

202446 H30H Z 4568

Balance as at 30 June 2024

BiFEE -

Notes:

(a) —REBEEHEES HARBHAEY

(b

=

©

I

=

(©)

=

(g

(h

=

@

2022-25 = FEHANVAE AT £52024-25 -

BHREES PR HitE®
UGC Funds Restricted Funds Other Funds
BN EEEBEA
Exqalie=yillody
KEREEE
— R B WgeTE H A [ e 70 Financial Assets at
General and Research Matching Grants BEES EEFK BAES El=iyictiz FVOCI -z
Development Projects and HAES FHAth Capital JNEF HWAES Designated Capital JNEE Unspecified Revaluation Capital At N QEE
Reserve Others Endowments Others Funds Sub-total Endowments Donations Funds Sub-total Donations Reserve Funds Others Sub-total Total
HETT HET HET HET HHET HETT HET HETT HETT HET HETT B8t HETT HET HETT EHET
$million $million $million $million $million $million $million $million $million $million $million $million $million $million $million $million
1,623 412 510 1,304 0 3,849 1,688 154 10 1,852 288 489 2,092 3,398 6,267 11,968
480 (116) 22 50 0 436 72 (18) 0 54 67 0 0 602 669 1,159
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 78 0 0 78 78
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 O] (15) 24) (24)
0 0 ) (43) 48 0 2) 2 0 0 37 0 5 (42) 0 0
(114) 114 0 0 0 0 53 4 0 57 0 0 0 (57) (57) 0
1,989 410 527 1,311 48 4,285 1,811 142 10 1,963 392 567 2,088 3,886 6,933 13,181
397 (136) 26 57 0 344 169 17) 0 152 80 0 0 586 666 1,162
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 285 0 0 285 285
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1) 1) (6]
0 0 0 (118) 118 0 3 0 3) 0 39 0 (57) 18 0 0
(89) 89 0 0 0 0 (68) 73 0 5 0 0 0 ) 5) 0
2,297 363 553 1,250 166 4,629 1,915 198 7 2,120 511 852 2,031 4,484 7,878 14,627

FEEREN © PNEBEION CET R =) S53RR SRS N —(ER5OR— MR R R A A G AR DU B 2 TSR 20% Rl o 58— R S R GRS OIS Z SR B BRI R IR - B R E THEY -

General and Development Reserve Fund (“GDRF”) represents the unspent UGC Block Grants. The balance of the GDRF at the end of a funding period (usually a triennium) that can be carried over to the next funding period is limited to a maximum of 20% of the University’s approved Block Grants for that funding period. Should the balance of the

GDREF at the end of the funding period exceeds the ceiling allowed, the excess amount is refundable to the UGC. The last year of 2022-25 triennium was 2024-25.

BRSETR B R Al Rl B 508 G SRS E IR HATE H SR SRS RS RO BRI TR LAF 4 -

Research Projects and Others represent UGC Block Grant set aside for individual research projects and start-up fund to new faculty members to support their research work.

BUSHRERK Ry BOA IO ARG 8 2 AR len - IRIBECE ammnIiRe] - RS R HRBE g #isN 2 EH) -
Matching Grants represent unspent funds from UGC’s Matching Grant Schemes. According to the rules and regulations promulgated by the UGC, these funds have to be used for activities within UGC ambit.

AR S R AR R E A R AR SR BRI Sl N D A O A SRR SR E S ) -

Endowments represent the funds which the University would, according to the wishes of the donors, keep the principal intact and only use income generated from the fund to support designated activities of the University.

R IRA AN AR EED) - SRZB0HE (TSRS s -

Designated Donations represent funds earmarked for specific activities, programs or projects of the University, other than for construction of buildings.

BAES MW  PRES R R BRI R IRTEFHE - [ E R R S AR P TSR R (I I BURF K

EIRRECEATA -

Capital Funds represent the net book value of property, plant and equipment as well as computer software which are acquired with recognised but unspent Government grants or donations or other income retained in the fund balances.

FEFE TR R I G P iR A

Unspecified Donations represent general donations without donor-specified purposes.

BN EE B UL IR BRE R AR 25 PRHEN A R s T IRRAII B B 2 0 T E S B A 2 RETRS -

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (“FVOCI”) Revaluation Reserve represents the fair value gain or loss of financial assets at FVOCIL.

HAMBEE AN B EEHED) -

Other Funds represent funds generated from self-financing activities.
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18.

AR K

PLEDGED DONATIONS
2024 2023

BET HET

$million $million
RTRTHARRIRZKEH 639 650
Outstanding amount as at 1 July
Wi 2 ARG 764 417
New pledges
EAF L ORI 4 & s R (R a) (61) (3)
Amount received during the year recognised in consolidated statement of
comprehensive income (Note a)
EAFEEZ BT S A EW G IRE (FEE 15) (280) (425)
Amounts received during the year credited to deferred income (Note 15)
TEARFEE T I (341) (428)
Total amount received during the year
A6 B30 HARRIR L 7KEH 1,062 639
Outstanding amount as at 30 June
Wizt (a) -
Note (a):

2024 2023

HRA E#T E#TT
Donation Income Smillion Smillion
TERESECHYCU AR S B EH 7 78 EAE S 2 AR E T 61 3
Amount of pledged donations received during the year and recognised directly in
consolidated statement of comprehensive income
LA EN s TR AR OISR 2 IHT Y s 2o st < ARt 1 (W 15) 102 123
Amount of pledged donations initially credited to deferred income and
subsequently recognised in consolidated statement of comprehensive income
during the year (Note 15)
HERGEEE R o 2 I s b Z P (9 D 163 126

Total donation income recognised in consolidated statement of comprehensive
income during the year (Page 9)
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19.

19.1

Cap il g e
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

&R THSR
CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

M

Financial assets

FEBEHRASET B

Financial assets at amortised cost

JETRR I R A% <

Accounts receivable and deposits

JFEIH H i =8 5 2 i

Bank deposits with original maturity over three months

Bl K S [ H

Cash and cash equivalents

A HEE B HA s IR MR HE

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

A HEEBSCUIR Z M A E

Financial assets at fair value through income and expenditure

AR

Financial liabilities

HAz AR AR Z T B A (R

Other financial liabilities at amortised cost

HEAR

Lease liabilities

JERRRFR st &

Accounts payable and accruals

37

2024 2023
BHET BHET

$million $million
726 539
1,855 2,380
1,100 1,444
897 605
11,500 10,122
16,078 15,090
89 17
494 448
583 465




19.

19.2

MABERERE (8 19.

ERTRESZ R 19.2

EEVEE R ZSEERE - ahsEE (B
SN ~ FIRJEE b R )~ (5 EEER R
TREE e o S b B PR
TG RETEEHRZR TS [REATR B R S =l
BEERAR] LUK A E I BRI AVB R E
R - REHTEETEE S 0 W R E
FE BB 2 S A -

(o) G

SRR R - FIZR S SR I T
SR B T 5 [ B 75 R L B AS R
W o AREMRZ TSR E RS HA
A A - AR EORERATES -
#% - HYREES -« #PEE - ARE
FERIFRR o« A SR R A (A
BRI A b B E R - [RIRFHE
R E B ORI E S - AR
AN R AP A B A 7y
& R SR R E TR R H T —
BERTH -

(i) SHEREE

Sl 2 4 N e 2R B e A
ZFICEHMERE - YT SE T
SEETHIH A T B SR T AR S b A A 2 i
N

TR = BRI Ed AN
i) WIEEEER T E2PERTE
WREEST o AR S B A R A b
EH B TR o DS TR
e

R20244E6 H30H » BUBTT ~ it - ARWER
HA(EEHE Y SR (E 4 7 G A
EREE17.3% (20234 5522.6% ) ~ 76.8% (
20234 £73.0% )~ 3.8% (20234 F52.5% ) K
2.1% (20235 %51.9% ) -

SR IR DS NS HERA S 2 51 > AHRH
ISP R A i -
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign currency risk, interest
rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
Group’s overall risk management focuses on controlling the
impact arising from unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the
Group’s financial performance by engaging external
professional advisors. The Administration of the University
assumes the day-to-day risk management responsibility and
monitors regularly the risk exposures of the Group.

(a) Market risk

Market risk represents the risk that the value of
financial assets will decrease as a result of movements
in market variables such as foreign currency exchange
rates, interest rates and stock prices. The Group is
exposed to market risk mainly through the investment
funds it holds. The Group’s investments comprise
equities, debt securities, real assets investment funds,
hedged funds, private investments and fixed deposits.
The investment strategy of the Group is to invest
prudently in order to preserve capital and achieve
optimal risk diversification while generating a stable
return over the long term and the required liquidity.
The Group employs external professional advisors
and investment managers to manage a significant
portion of its investments, and delegates to the
Finance Office of the University to manage fixed
deposits and some of the fixed income instruments.

(i)  Foreign currency risk

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risks
primarily arising from its United States dollars
(“USD”) denominated investments that are managed
by investment managers. As HKD is pegged to the
USD, the Group considers the risk from movements in
exchange rates between the HKD and USD to be
insignificant.

Since currency movements tend to have a much
smaller impact on portfolio performance in the long
run, no hedging for non-USD currency exposure will
be arranged under normal circumstances. Such
currency exposure management policy is subject to
periodic review and hedging may be arranged when
situation warrants.

As at 30 June 2024, the percentages of financial
assets denominated in HKD, USD, RMB and other
currencies to total financial assets were 17.3% (2023:
22.6%), 76.8% (2023: 73.0%), 3.8% (2023: 2.5%)
and 2.1% (2023: 1.9%), respectively.

The Group does not have material financial liabilities
denominated in foreign currency and considers the
related foreign exchange risk immaterial.



19.

19.2

ABEREE (8
ERTHRESLZER (8

(@)
(i)

(iii)

(b)

emE (%)
FIE

SRR AR 2 FE B R (PR P A R 3

Jefz - HESEREEE=HZET—_EH

NENH > ATDACE RS A e - fREscHAt AT 2 )

THH RS - MR TSR BT R

(B - AEEEZE2024456 H30H 114
FER BB EI LR D — T =E =T8T (
023F /—TEE—TEIT) -

S fE

SRl A 56 (B R £ A R R
MBI SRS - EFERER IR
[F1i55 ~ 1758 A AR E ST B BT T
VAR - [R20244E6 H30H A {EE ETFEC
RSP » FEEAMATA SRR R EIEL T
 REERE202456 H30H ILF e AR E
BEIAE EI7S T —RILE L HETT (20235
RA+=RANE=18T)

EREE

TR 2 B A R N F RIS -
HITHIR - FEURRAR ~ AT B 2 s
HE ~ A HEEEBHA S EIEY R
WA e oA A PR UG SR T A

S 5 SR T K - e
B AR 2 SR B R P
© E R TR R LA R AL
A -

Bl N S R BR S RO E HTK » ST R
PR (5 EARRELG TIE AL L E BT
HTI7 - AT R T EE - A
S (B A A TR U 2 5 I 2 A 1 S
AN HEE B ORI S s R A
GIEAY

EENC ISR E R - WA %A
FJ5 > Aoyl -
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19.2

39

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

(a) Market risk (Cont’d)
(ii)  Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk in relation
to its fixed deposits and bond securities. As the fixed
deposits usually mature within three to twelve
months, the risk exposure is considered not material.
If bank deposit interest rates had been 50 basis points
higher / lower, with all other variables held constant,
the Group’s surplus for the year ended 30 June 2024
would increase / decrease by approximately $13.3
million (2023: $17.1 million).

(iii)  Price risk

The Group is mainly exposed to securities price risk
from its investments managed by investment
managers. Securities price risk is managed by
diversification of investments in different markets,
sectors and assets types. At 30 June 2024, if the
prices of the respective investments had been 5%
higher / lower, with all other variables held constant,
the Group’s surplus for the year ended 30 June 2024
would increase /decrease by approximately $619.9
million (2023: $536.3 million).

(b) Credit risk

The Group’s principal financial assets are cash and
cash equivalents, bank deposits, accounts receivable,
financial assets at amortised cost, financial assets at
fair value through other comprehensive income and
financial assets at fair value through income and
expenditure.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its
accounts receivable. The amounts represented in the
consolidated balance sheet are net of loss allowance,
estimated by the Group’s management based on past
experience and their assessment of the current
economy.

Cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits are
placed with counterparties with credit-ratings of
investment grade or above assigned by international
credit-ratings agencies. Financial assets at amortised
cost, financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income and financial assets at fair
value through income and expenditure are rated
investment grade or above.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit
risk, with exposure spread over a number of
counterparties.



19.

19.2

19.3

MERREE (&) 19. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

SR THEE Y R (8) 19.2  RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

(b) EEEE (&) (b) Credit risk (Cont’d)
METEIS H A GEE H R AEBI T A R S JHEE The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the
HBREE BT - AIAREE EE R R event of the counterparties’ failure to perform their
RN EEEABERIUNEZENIREE - obligations as at balance sheet date in relation to each

class of recognised financial assets is the carrying
amount of those assets as stated in the consolidated
balance sheet.

20246 H30H - EEIRIBEE B R &8 The Group assessed that there is no significant loss
RIEE O SmaEd N de B A RS TR S - allowance in accordance with HKFRS 9 as at 30 June
2024.
(© FEELEE (¢c) Liquidity risk
AEEN R AREIHH BEEHR 2 Most of the Group’s liabilities are due within twelve
EAN - EEREE SRR ITH - AEEE months from the respective balance sheet date. To
B R eI 0 R R e S EIE B R AR R K manage the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
¥ DARE(T B B AT - maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents to

fulfill the normal liquidity needs.

wAEHE
CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

FHNESHEETRS  REMEES REMBESAANK - ZER S R S HREE HIVIMEAL - WarFIIHEELTA - S5
Y E SR OrE e S < DA S SR B R R AR S R 2 - SRR AR SRS A E — R R R 8 o

The Group’s funds consist of UGC funds, restricted funds and other funds, which are set up for various designated
purposes as described in Note 17. It is the Group’s objective to maintain sufficient funds to support the Group’s current
and future operating expenditure requirements. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior years.

G R RELC 17 2 A B2 B A T b R (R B L R A Rl U EH AR e

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions and the
risk characteristics of its activities.
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19.4

MBRBEE (8D
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

APEMAR
FAIR VALUE ESTIMATION

(@)  DAAPEFIRRAYERETE

Financial assets carried at fair value

DITFIRERHN GE A E A MR A PHES B2 A RE SR TR Z 00 2 T PR RS

The tables below provide an analysis of the Group’s financial instruments that are measured at fair value in the consolidated balance sheet, grouped

by level of the following fair value measurement:

o MAREERACERTSZ®E (B—%F50)

Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1)

o  BRTHEFHREEZEES > REENAL TBSER » TAERSHEE (BTER)

Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly (Level 2)

o HEEMAMIIFHIETEE TSR B (E=%80)

Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (Level 3)

B—ER BN BEEN Hag
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
HHETT HHETT HHETT HHETT
$million $million $million $million
A20244E6 H30H
As at 30 June 2024
AN HEE RS SR 2 B &
Financial Assets at Fair Value through Income and Expenditure
- R 447 0 0 447
Listed equity funds
- Ik RS 2,665 1,173 0 3,838
Unlisted equity funds
- EHEE AR S 2,196 0 0 2,196
Listed fixed income funds
- Ik EHEEWA LS 298 593 585 1,476
Unlisted fixed income funds
- JE ETHEYEE 0 644 340 984
Unlisted real assets funds
- B |3l o R B 0 1,468 0 1,468
Unlisted hedge funds
- e EMAEE 0 0 1,065 1,065
Unlisted private investments
- SUIEIEE i ea 18 0 0 18
Listed convertible bonds
- Ik b TR S 0 0 8 8
Unlisted convertible notes
5,624 3,878 1,998 11,500
N HEE R EAM Y R B &
Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income
- brikEsEE 268 0 0 268
Listed equity securities
- JRLTiRERE 0 0 629 629
Unlisted equity securities
268 0 629 897
5,892 3,878 2,627 12,397
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19.4

MBRRER (8
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

AHEMERE (8D
FAIR VALUE ESTIMATION (CONT’D)

(@) MAAPEFRNSHEE (&)

Financial assets carried at fair value (Cont’d)

FER BHEY BEEER 485
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EHETT HETT HETT HETT
$million $million $million $million
202356 H30H
As at 30 June 2023
N HEBEBC SUIR 2 I &
Financial Assets at Fair Value through Income and Expenditure
- bR 619 0 0 619
Listed equity funds
- JELTIRRERS 2,412 969 0 3,381
Unlisted equity funds
- b E AR 829 0 0 829
Listed fixed income funds
- I b EW AR E 1,185 541 498 2,224
Unlisted fixed income funds
- JE EMEYES 0 594 241 835
Unlisted real assets funds
- JELbmEESE 0 1,245 0 1,245
Unlisted hedge funds
- FELEWRARE 0 0 962 962
Unlisted private investments
- AT R 2R 17 0 0 17
Listed convertible bonds
- JE_E AT AR RS 0 0 10 10
Unlisted convertible notes
5,062 3,349 1,711 10,122
N HEE B EAN 2T R 2 s
Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income
- briRERESE 17 0 0 17
Listed equity securities
- FRLTIREE S 0 0 588 588
Unlisted equity securities
17 0 588 605
5,079 3,349 2,299 10,727

JE S = F P TRRYA A2 F A CE iRt 2 e H SIS - M0 R 2 R 5T -
The fair value of the financial instruments under Level 2 is determined by reference to the prices at the reporting date provided by the investment
managers and have been translated using the exchange rates at the end of the reporting period where appropriate.

B =H R TER A AT 2 HEIT I S ERS LL R 2 BB D R T S (B E N LSRR R T ~ A B S Ls J7Ar) SRR R e

The fair value of the financial instruments under Level 3 is determined by reference to the recent transaction price, and financial models based on
discounted cash flow analysis, earnings multiple and net equity method with reference to market valuations for similar entities.

E=FRH LR AEAEE R R EKETRAR IR LA ERE -

Level 3 financial instruments include investments in unlisted companies by the Group and its investment managers.

AR » AR B A 2 T 5 IR 2 o 1 S PR B = S A B 5 — Y A A AR R — (LS8 (202348 @ M) -

During the year, there was a transfer of Financial Investments at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income of $109 million (2023: nil) from
Level 3 to Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy classifications.
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19.4

MBRBEE (8D
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

APEMSSE (8D
FAIR VALUE ESTIMATION (CONT’D)

(@) DAAPESRAESHRE (8)

Financial assets carried at fair value (Cont’d)

FNPHES L BEER B TRNFENZ EHT

The movements of the Level 3 financial instruments measured at fair value during the year are as follows:

THIHZ 4tk

Balance as at 1 July

A

Acquisitions

ik

Disposals

RS 2 B — AR O PHER T RS

Transfer to Level 1

Bt Adr e 2 EWE R AR

Net gains recognised in consolidated statement of comprehensive income

6 H30H > &6k
Balance as at 30 June

Bt Adr & R EWE 2 N A 4 a2 05 B FISEEE
Net gains for the year included in consolidated statement of comprehensive income, under other
comprehensive income

EEtAGFE R HEGERNF SR E A Z B EFIE4E
Net gains for the year included in consolidated statement of comprehensive income, under interest and net
investment income
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2024 2023
BHET BHET
$million $million
2,299 1,943
339 339
(147) (122)
(109) 0
245 139
2,627 2,299
144 88
101 51




20. EiE

COMMITMENTS

(a) BEAKIE

Capital Commitments

®

(ii)

DT Ry RIATA B (e 2 A RAYISE ~ 1438 R R TR A RS
Outstanding capital commitments in respect of property, plant and equipment
not provided for in the financial statements were as follows:

B4

Contracted for

EER R EMAREY

Authorised but not contracted for

DUN Ry R A M B E R 5 2 B B B AR B TV E ARYE ©
Outstanding capital commitments in respect of financial assets not provided
for in the financial statements were as follows:

B

Contracted for

HRIE

Total commitments

LHURBEITARIERTE AR |

Funding support for the above outstanding capital commitments:

2024
BT

$million

2023
Sl

$million

1,644

3,456

1,547

1,371

5,100

2,918

1,270

1,227

6,370

4,145

TRE SR HEMEAZ 5
Amounts to be financed by the Group’s resources
— CHEIRWAEERIE e &8
Amounts recognised as income and retained in UGC Funds
—  HERRGIEES S A R il
Other amounts representing restricted funds or other funds to be allocated
M R B A R AE U 2172 6 A 30 H 2 80
Amounts received and reflected as deferred income as at 30 June
FEGUHAEARRE B e
Amounts in respect of UGC grants approved but not yet received

RRRE R 2 SR
Amounts pledged by donors

2024
BT

$million

2023
Sl

$million

965

2,113

173

2,938

181

949

1,187

440

1,394

175

6,370

4,145

(b) EEHAZRHE

Operating Lease Commitments

(O]

TE Ry tHRE AR B A 7R HE

Operating leases commitments as lessors

6 H30H - EEBA R AIEHEEHE Y HRRHERA ST
As at 30 June, the Group had future aggregate minimum lease income under
non-cancellable operating leases as follows:

—4Ep

In one year

—1E

After one year

2024
BT

$million

2023
Sl

$million




21. REREGREMESZRGRRNEREN RS KB ITRS
UNIVERSITY COUNCIL AND COUNCIL COMMITTEES MEMBERS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

211 EEEY
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

21.2

R & Rk B B & 2 5 & B AT R B B (AT a8 A B A4 H B FE P R RTI R R AE R AR AR B R & 4 B R B
PR E AL -

No contract of significance to which the University or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Council member or a
Council Committee member was materially interested, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.

BBt TR
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

AR > A REHEST T RSB ARBART 5 -

During the year, the Group entered into the following material related parties transactions:

(2)

(b)

FEEHABZME (GE)

Compensation of key management personnel (Note)

CEFEEE 4 — sl AR THMARNEEEE AR ZBME0T
Below is the compensation of the key management personnel who have also been included in Note 4 - Remuneration of
Higher Paid Staff:

2024 2023

BET BET

$million $million
Fro R H AR B EA 76 65
Salaries and other short-term employee benefits
T2 tEA 7 7
Post employment benefits

83 72

it TEEEIA SRR RERE - BT B E e R EN A A ST ET TRIF » AR
TR R

Note: Key management personnel represent senior management of the University whose primary responsibilities include
the review and approval of major administrative policies affecting the University’s operations, and long-term plans
and strategies for the development of the University.

EER - BRITEUR B R 8 TARSN > AEEI TR ik S B &2 5 & 8 A ARSI [ H S (T B R
A R ERB IR BB Z #8 ~ fEee e (20234 @ i) -

No remunerations, fees or other emoluments were paid to or receivable by any Council members or Council Committees
members (other than those executive members and elected staff members) in respect of their services to the Group during
the year (2023: Nil).
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22. [BATE
SUBSIDIARIES

F220244E6 H30H - REZIS@EAFNT ¢

At 30 June 2024, the University’s subsidiaries were as follows:

b 2=
Proportion of
SEL / BER Nominal Value
Place / Country of Issued /
AT of Registered Capital FEEE)
Subsidiary Incorporation Held by the University Principal Activity

HERFA it e R ]

Direct Indirect
RO U (E 22 AR A E] itk 100% -
HKUST College of Lifelong Learning Hong Kong
Limited
FARAMERRAE ik 100% -
HKUST Properties Limited Hong Kong
Redbird Innovation Fund Limited & - B
Hong Kong Note

RIS AR AH &k 100% -
Hong Kong University of Science and Hong Kong
Technology R and D Corporation
A& AR A F S A TR A H g A RILAIE - 100%
HKUST R and D Corporation People’s
(Guangzhou) Limited Republic of

China
RIS CRID AIRAE g A RILAIE - 100%
HKUST R and D Corporation People’s
(Shenzhen) Limited Republic of

China
[ INTH & R LR 7he g A RILAIE - 100%
Guangzhou HKUST Fok Ying Tung People’s
Research Institute Republic of

China
BRI BRI ERT rhE \ RS 100% -
The HKUST Shenzhen Research Institute People’s

Republic of

China
EBRHROR R b B BT B 7 b g A RILAIE 100% -
HKUST Shenzhen - Hong Kong People’s
Collaborative  Innovation  Research Republic of
Institute China

i EAFRERAIRAT A EEA -

Note: This company is limited by gurantee without share capital
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AIEE)

Dormant

AIEE)

Dormant

TESEHEA B ~ RIERAIR S -
To engage in other professional, scientific and
technical activities.

EENES IR T =ANE - SUTRRHE IR
CERE TSR - SR - BAEIRHE - YRR
DUR HEWHTE B TS -

To engage in technology commercialisation
including  industrial  contracting, licensing,
incubation of start-up companies, property
management and research and technical services,
especially in Hong Kong and the Pearl River Delta
Area.

ILRBINEED » EOTHARHR AR KBS - DU IEA]
SEED) ¢ BT AERL - R E KBRS R
RN FRE S IIRHERESEAL - DUREEE A BFIRHY
ANA RSN -

Station in Guangzhou (Nansha), to engage in
technology innovation and development as well as
entrepreneurship  activities  including  startup
incubation, and commercialisation of technologies
developed in Clear Water Bay and Nansha
campuses, as well as training of management and
technology personnel.

TR - BRI ~ 853 - B9E - B
FPASE BRAIE -

Station in Shenzhen, to facilitate the University’s
education, training, research, technology
development and entrepreneurship activities in the
Mainland.

IR ZYIFEHIE - B REAENIATES - 55l -
7 ~ BHGRHE R AIES -

Station in Shenzhen Futian District, to facilitate the
University’s  education,  training,  research,
technology development and entrepreneurship
activities in the Mainland.




23.

At
OTHER AGREEMENTS

@

BN SHET RIS (BN AV
Agreements related to establishing the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology (Guangzhou)

FR0I8FEI12H21H » KERBFIN T A RBUSFIEE RS E B - SETEREORE (BN ( THBRER (BEND

) o BEIAERER (M) WESREREMNTARBT - KEAFRAERK (BN #itEE -

On 21 December 2018, the University signed agreements with the Guangzhou Municipal Government and Guangzhou
University (“GZU”) to establish Hong Kong University of Science and Technology (Guangzhou) (“HKUST (GZ)”). The
funding for the establishment of HKUST (GZ) is provided by Guangzhou Municipal Government. No financial commitment is
required from the University to fund HKUST (GZ).

KB NS 2 MR R LB S (RO - BTt BRI (EIN) HIREZRHERSAHRARYEE ~ Sff ~ IR
AHIBASE - AR LR G stk « IRBIRIRR  REANGRAERIR (BIN) BEMTEE BoRYE HAE M -
FHRREIUATIBHSE « It » BUERER (BN AVZHEE R 2RI IR S S pe 2 -

The arrangement between the University and GZU is a joint operation, where both parties account for their own assets,
liabilities, revenues and expenses relating to its interest in HKUST (GZ) as opposed to applying equity accounting. Under the
terms of the agreements, the University will not hold any assets or incur any liabilities, revenues or expenses related to HKUST
(GZ). Consequently, the arrangement with HKUST (GZ) has no impact on the financial results of the University.

RERBJEBRIR (B - (EEINT AN REBUN S B DU N et # S B R (RN EF LIE - AiEE
RIRIHZE A BB RARRABE S B ROERER (BN TAEM BT ~ M5 /KEBREE AV B2 ER S - D
BB RERBUR MU T H AR S anrp s S MBI AR - AT B R BRI B & H B B — 8
7 (20234F : =HET) - WHEGETR TEEIRBREMUA ) o SCSRIERE IS T - 7R20244F6 H30H 2k
[N A RBUFTIAE &SR —E—T/UEETT (20235 : ZE-TAEET) @ MERSPGEREARSE
HHEiER A TIRAEW AR ) -

For the establishment of HKUST (GZ), the University received funding from Guangzhou Municipal Government to support
Guangzhou Pilot Scheme and other preparation work for HKUST (GZ), including but not limited to postgraduate studentship
and related teaching and learning expenditures, the salary costs of its staff who have been involved in the work of HKUST
(GZ), the direct operating costs incurred in Clear Water Bay campus as well as the indirect costs such as centrally provided
facilities and other support services which were charged in the form of overhead recovery according to the University’s policy.
The overhead recovery charged in current financial year was $1 million (2023: $3 million), which was recorded as "Auxiliary
Services and Other Income" under the UGC-funded Activities. As at 30 June 2024, the unspent balance of funding from
Guangzhou Municipal Government of $118 million (2023: $226 million) was recorded within "Deferred Income" in the
University consolidated balance sheet.

AREER - REEBBERIR (BN HETT TYIERRS
During the year, the Group entered into the following material transactions with HKUST (GZ):

2024 2023
HET HET

$million $million

BUERIAR (BEND 2385
Transactions with HKUST (GZ)

BRR BN STz s 1 7
Occupancy fee charged to HKUST (GZ)

BRR B ST 2R E M 3 0
Service fee charged to HKUST(GZ)

SRR (BN ZWE & EE A 4 4
Research Collaboration fee paid to HKUST (GZ)
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23. HAhiEHER @&
OTHER AGREEMENTS (CONT'D)

(b)

EEAHKCeND, HKCRC, ACCESS Jz HKGAIfT %
Agreements related to HKCeND, HKCRC, ACCESS and HKGAI

FRRRIREREHAS T OB F R ITEERT ( "B, ) MREHRZ — - BINEBARRHE ( T1TC, )
HEH InnoHKEH# » & ool Fe it SRR I A BT B/ S 2R TR S (IR H - IS ER SRR T A T T R
=GRV E -

As part of the Government of the HKSAR (the “Government”) vision for Hong Kong to be the hub for global research
collaboration, the Government set up the InnoHK initiative through the Innovation and Technology Commission (“ITC”) that
involves the establishment of world-class research clusters in the Hong Kong Science Park with research laboratories set up by
world renowned institutions and/or commercial entities to conduct collaborative research projects.

RELREIELL EEHE] - BLBUT KB AERHE AT (“HKSTP?) Zpifiak - L T R RARAT - M hnoHKE
HIESR SR TR ED) - BIURIERAIR AT 0 51 A EEMERITIEER T O AIRAF (“HKCeND”) -
FRERE RS OAIRAT (“HKCRC?) - HRER R BRI O AIRATE (“ACCESS”) MIFHBEARANL
BREMFETOAIRAE (“HKGAD) » 457 (T InnoHK AF], ) -

In response to the above, the University entered into agreements with the Government and the Hong Kong Science and
Technology Parks Corporation (the “HKSTP”) and set up four entities limited by guarantee to carry out research activities with
funding support from the Government under the InnoHK initiative. The four entities are Hong Kong Center for
Neurodegenerative Diseases Limited (“HKCeND”), Hong Kong Center for Construction Robotics Limited (“HKCRC”), Al
Chip Center for Emerging Smart Systems Limited (“ACCESS”) and Hong Kong Generative Al Research and Development
Center Limited ("HKGAI") (collectively the "InnoHK Companies").

HEEREZELERARATNIE—RR S - (RSB R HKSTPET IR > KB G2 F v B BRI -
A REZE B H I InnoHK A SHTRER S RE T2 B LS (B - NI R SRR & HFISEE A TRV -

Although the University is the sole member of these entities, the University has not consolidated the results of these entities as
under the terms of the agreements entered into with the Government and the HKSTP, the University is not exposed to, and does
not have the rights or the power to affect variable returns from its involvement with InnoHK Companies.

AEEN - AEEE InnoHK A S#ET T T FIE AR S

During the year, the Group entered into the following material transactions with InnoHK Companies:

2024 2023
HHET HET

$million $million

()  ElinoHK /A H] 2 %5
Transactions with InnoHK Companies

InnoHK A FISZ {2 35 H &H BASZ 22 19
Overheads charged to InnoHK Companies

InnoHK /AT (2 5% £ 12 5 12
Research Collaboration fee charged to InnoHK Companies

B L& HEnnoHK A\ & Z MR A 6 7
Cost Recovery for staft deployed to InnoHK Companies

AInnoHK /N T ERH B 5n B IR TS 542 22
Purchase of goods and services on behalf of InnoHK Companies

(i)  JEUYInnoHK 2\ EIFCH 37 7
Amounts due from InnoHK Companies

(i) % InnoHK 235] 2 FAUGEK 2 3
Receipt in advance from InnoHK Companies
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EEGEHES R

T TE B> B2 A A (R AR T < A0 - SR
ERIARRBHNEEARK AL EEENAGRN
R TGk - BRI R S E
FEBHEIRR ~ RAGHr e BB B M RCATI EF
RAEEENI R - FEEIRIR AR AR R CE
(RAVTETHE ST ARG - TEIHE R - BRESRK
B BEAfSETAL BB SR TR IR R 2
TR -

Py~ s Rk Z T R BISHEZ

ASEBLATAR AR TR VI - 138 Rl 47
£ R IR BB - IR P A TR
SHEALT » E (T HAT S -

REH

ST E BN TR Z A HEMRREREHD
MSHRETIR - 2AERETSEEN M TE » H
D HEMRREUE RIS ERAMEEE - AR HFEr
BEAUEE TR B - W EE R &
KRE RIS B -

24,
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

In determining the carrying amounts of some
assets and liabilities, the Group makes
assumptions of the effects of uncertain future
events on those assets and liabilities at the balance
sheet date. These estimates involve assumptions
about such items as risk adjustment to cash flows
or discount rates used, future changes in salaries
and future changes in prices affecting other costs.
The Group’s estimates and assumptions are based
on historical experience and expectations of future
events and are reviewed periodically. In addition
to assumptions and estimations of future events,
judgements are also made during the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
and amortisation of computer software

The Group determines the estimated useful lives
for related depreciation charges for property, plant
and equipment and amortisation of computer
software. = Management will revise the
depreciation or amortisation charges where useful
lives are different to previously estimated.

Valuation of investments

The fair values of financial instruments traded in
active markets are based on quoted bid prices at
the balance sheet date. The fair values of
financial instruments that are not traded in an
active market are determined using established
valuation techniques. The Group wuses its
judgement to select valuation methods and pricing
sources to make assumptions that are mainly
based on market conditions existing at the end of
each reporting period.
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FEEHBER
RG] | RAERT B R B Al

202456 30 H 1L - AEETHEA
FrA & C 202341 H 1 HaDURBIE F R
SRR A SR B B B T S E
HEEHN

AEFCHERN B ERTIR ZFE > R
TS TSR SR R I B IR B R R R
MR EY - SR E AR -

AREE R BRI TR - T g
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e -
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Adoption of new / revised HKFRS

For the year ended 30 June 2024, the Group has
adopted all the new and revised standards and
amendments to HKFRS that are effective for the
accounting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023 and relevant to the operations of
the Group.

The Group has assessed the impact of the
adoption of these amendments and considered
that there was no significant impact on the
Group’s results and financial position nor any
substantial changes to the Group’s accounting
policies and presentation of the financial
statements.

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of the financial statements of the
Group are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the University and
entities controlled by the University made up to
30 June each year.

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which control is transferred to
the Group. They are deconsolidated from the
date that control ceases.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with those used by
other members of the Group.

All significant intercompany transactions and
balances within the group are eliminated on
consolidation.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

Interest in an Associate and a Joint
Arrangement

An associate is an entity over which the Group
has significant influence and that is neither a
subsidiary nor an interest in a joint venture.

The results and assets and liabilities of an
associate are incorporated in the consolidated
financial statements using the equity method of
accounting. Interest in an associate is carried in
the consolidated balance sheet at cost as adjusted
by post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share
of the net assets of the associate, less any
impairment loss.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the
Group and its associates are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in the associates.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
associates have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

A joint arrangement is an arrangement of which
two or more parties have joint control and over
which none of the participating parties has
unilateral control.  Investments in joint
arrangements are classified either as joint
ventures or joint operations, depending on the
contractual rights and obligations each party has.
Joint ventures arise where the participating
parties have rights to the net assets of the
arrangement. A joint venture partner accounts
for an investment in such an arrangement using
the equity method. The equity method records
the initial investment at cost which is adjusted
periodically to reflect the changes in value due to
the share of the joint venture’s performance.
Joint operations arise where the participating
parties have specific rights and obligations under
the arrangement to the assets and liabilities of an
arrangement. Each participating party accounts
for the assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses
relating to its own rights and obligations to the
joint operation in accordance with the HKFRSs
applicable to the particular assets, liabilities,
revenues and expenses.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress, are stated at cost less
accumulated  depreciation and  accumulated
impairment losses.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment,
other than construction in progress, is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate their costs,
net of the residual values, if any, over the estimated
useful lives. Depreciation is charged from the month
when the asset is ready for use.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less any
identified impairment loss and is not depreciated
until completion of construction. Cost of completed
construction works is transferred to appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. The gain or loss arising
from derecognition of an asset, representing the
difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of that asset is recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Intangible Assets
Computer software

Computer software costs are capitalised on the basis
of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the
specific software and are stated in the consolidated
balance sheet at cost less accumulated amortisation.

Amortisation of computer software is charged to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on
a straight-line basis over the assets’ estimated useful
lives. Amortisation is charged from the month when
the asset is ready for use.

Computer software under development is not
amortised until ready for use.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

Financial Assets
Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following categories:

(a) those to be measured subsequently at fair
value (either through other comprehensive
income (“OCI”) or through income and
expenditure), and

(b) those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s
business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual terms of the cash
flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and
losses will either be recorded in income and
expenditure or OCI. For investments in
equity instruments that are not held for
trading, this will depend on whether the
Group has made an irrevocable election at
the time of initial recognition to account for
the equity investment at FVOCI.

The Group reclassifies debt investments
when and only when its business model for
managing those assets changes.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of
a financial asset not at fair value through income
and expenditure (“FVIE”), transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset. Transaction costs of financial
assets carried at FVIE are expensed in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

Financial Assets (Cont’d)

Debt investments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model for
managing the asset and the contractual cash flow

characteristics of the asset.

There are three

measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

(a)

(b)

(©

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. A gain or loss on a debt
instrument that is subsequently measured at
amortised cost is recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income when the asset is derecognised or
impaired. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in interest and
investment income using the effective
interest rate method.

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows and for sale, where
the assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are
measured at FVOCI. Movements in the
carrying amount are taken through other
comprehensive income, except for the
recognition of impairment losses, interest
income using the effective interest rate
method and foreign exchange gains and
losses which are recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income. When the financial asset is
derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified from
equity to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income and recognised in
interest and investment income.

FVIE: Assets that do not meet the criteria
for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured
at FVIE. A gain or loss on a debt
investment that is subsequently measured at
FVIE is recognised and presented in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income within interest and investment
income in the period in which it arises.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

Financial Assets (Cont’d)
Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has made an irrevocable election at
initial recognition to present fair value gains and
losses on equity investments in other
comprehensive income, on derecognition of the
investment, there is no subsequent reclassification
of fair value gains and losses to income and
expenditure and any balance within other
comprehensive  income for these equity
investments is reclassified to other funds as a fund
movement. Dividends from such investments
continue to be recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income when the
Group’s right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at
FVIE are recognised and presented in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income
within interest and investment income as
applicable. Impairment losses (and reversal of
impairment losses) on equity investments
measured at FVOCI are not reported separately
from other changes in fair value.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the
expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised cost and FVOCI.
The impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk.

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivables are initially recognised at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less
allowances for expected credit losses. The Group
measured the loss allowance for its accounts
receivables at an amount equal to the lifetime
expected credit losses. Appropriate allowance for
estimated irrecoverable amounts are recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income when there is objective evidence that the
asset is impaired.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated using the
weighted average method.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and deposits available on demand with an original
maturity of 3 months or less.

Accounts payable, accruals, deferred income
and contract liabilities

Accounts payable and accruals and deferred
income are initially measured at fair value, and are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest rate method.

Funds earmarked for specific purposes are
recognised as income to the extent of the related
expenditure incurred during the reporting period.
Funds received but not yet recognised as income
are recorded as deferred income.

Contract liabilities primarily relate to the advance
consideration received from customers, where the
Group has the wunconditional right to
considerations before the goods or services are
delivered. They are released and revenues are
recognised when the performance obligations are
satisfied upon transferring of goods and services
to customers.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation as a result of a past event, and it
is probable that the Group will be required to
settle that obligation. Provisions are measured at
management’s best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the obligation at the balance
sheet date, and are discounted to present value
where the effect is material.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Impairment

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If the recoverable amount of an
asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. Impairment loss is recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, such that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
as income immediately.

Deferred Capital Funds

Deferred capital funds represent funds from
subventions and grants or donations spent by the Group
on the purchase of property, plant and equipment as
well as intangible assets. These funds are recognised
as income in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income to match against the
depreciation charges of the related asset items over
their estimated useful lives.

Recognition of Income
(a) Government subventions and grants

Government subventions and grants are
recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income when there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them; and that the
subventions and grants will be received.

Grants earmarked for specific purposes are
recognised as income to the extent of the related
expenses are incurred during the reporting period.

Subvention and grants spent on capital
expenditure are initially recorded as deferred
capital funds and recognised as income to match
against the depreciation charges of the related
asset items over their estimated useful lives.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

25.14 Recognition of Income (Cont’d)
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(b

(©

(d)

(@

Donations

Donations without conditions in cash or cash
equivalents or other investment instruments are
recognised as income when received or
receivable.  Outstanding pledges are not
recognised as income unless a legal obligation on
the donor can be established by the Group.

Donations received with a specific purpose are
recognised as income to the extent of the related
expenditure incurred during the reporting period.

Tuition, programmes and other fees

Tuition, programmes and other fees are
recognised over time when the services are
rendered and the Group’s performance provides
the  benefits received and  consumed
simultaneously by the students. Tuition,
programmes and other fees recognised on an
accrual basis and unearned fees are included in
contract liabilities.

Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued
on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the interest rate applicable,
which is the rate that exactly discount the
estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s
net carrying amount.

Research contract income

Income from contract research is recognised over
the period of the contract by reference to the
progress towards complete satisfaction of that
performance obligation. The progress towards
complete satisfaction of the performance
obligation is measured based on the Group’s
efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of the
performance obligation, by reference to the
expenses incurred up to the end of reporting
period as a percentage of total estimated costs for
each contract.

Licensing income

Licensing income is recognised on a straight line
basis over the contract period when a customer is
granted with a right to access the patents as it
exists  throughout the licence  period.
Alternatively, licensing income is recognised at a
single point in time upon delivery of the patents
when a customer is provided with a right to use
the patents as it exists at the point in time at
which the licence is granted.



25.

EREBOR (8

25.15 #HE

EE M E & A R E B R E
o R EMHEN & E -

HEESENEEMAEEREE TGS
2 - HEA A EEEEE (T RERER
{H - B AECHEME R T B Ry
- HEER A A S FERETET - HE
(AR & T RS AR TR -

TS (RREREA S AR B A S 2 e
oot - HENE S HAEHE N A%
TR > DA BRG] e A A S A R
SHAR A FERAE T RAE -

THE & RS E H A+ {8 H R 7y
BRIERBETE

(EFEE L AT R - AR E AR
IaET RS - (AR ERHEYE
GUEETHRITE - BAEE CHEM R+
“MEHERLT) MM EEEEHE AR
(RERR EAREN S S RN R
H -

REE RthFLA > Py s S A
A E NI B AATER B -

25.

25.15

59

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the
leased asset is available for use by the Group.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are
initially measured on a present value basis. Lease
liabilities are measured at the net present value of
the remaining fixed lease payments. Lease
payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the
measurement of the liabilities. The lease payments
are discounted using the interest rate implicit in
the lease.

Lease payments are allocated between principal
and lease interest expense. The lease interest
expense is charged to the statement of
comprehensive income over the lease period so as
to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on
the remaining balance of the liability for each
period.

Lease liabilities are classified as non-current
liabilities unless payments are payable within 12
months from the balance sheet date.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost
comprising the amount of the initial measurement
of lease liability. Right-of-use assets are
depreciated over the lease terms on a straight-line
basis. Payments associated with short-term leases
with lease terms of 12 months or less and leases of
low-value assets are expensed on a straight-line
basis in the statement of comprehensive income.

Lease income from operating leases where the
University is a lessor is recognised in income on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING
(CONT’D)

POLICIES

Retirement Benefits Costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement
benefit plans are recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income when
employees have rendered service entitling them to
the contribution.

For long service payment ("LSP") obligation, the
Group accounts for the employer MPF
contributions expected to be offset as a deemed
employee contribution towards the LSP obligation
in terms of HKAS 19.93(a) and it is measured on
a net basis. The estimated amount of future
benefit is determined after deducting the negative
service cost arising from the accrued benefits
derived from the Group’s MPF contributions that
have been vested with employees, which are
deemed to be contributions from the relevant
employees.

Foreign Currencies

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (“the functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the
Group’s presentation currency.

(a) Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

Foreign Currencies (Cont'd)

(b) The results and financial position of all
Group entities (none of which has the
currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated
into the presentation currency as follows:

. Assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet.

. Income and expenditure for each statement
of comprehensive income are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at exchange
rates at the dates of the transactions); and all
resulting  exchange  differences  are
recognised as a separate component of
equity.

Cost Allocation for UGC-funded and non-UGC
funded activities for segment reporting

In compiling the segment reporting for
compliance with the Cost Allocation Guidelines
for UGC-funded and non-UGC-funded Activities
(“the Guidelines”) effective from 1 July 2018,
costs associated with UGC activities, non-UGC
activities or shared activities are identified. Costs
directly attributable to UGC or non-UGC
activities are not subject to cost allocation. Shared
costs are allocated to UGC and non-UGC
segments using appropriate cost drivers including
teaching credits of UGC and non-UGC
programmes, the number of student Full Time
Equivalents (“FTE”), floor area, etc.. Costs
funded by donations are regarded as direct costs
and reported under the Non-UGC Segment.



26.

EAHE EAREREHER] ~ EET A R e
POSSIBLE IMPACT OF NEW STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS PUBLISHED
THAT ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE

AEEER L B AR B A DL T AR (E e R AR A B A RE Z8ra T S A S TR ~ 83T Rt
2

The Group has not early adopted the following new standards, amendments, and interpretations which have been issued
and are relevant to its operations but are not yet effective, in these financial statements:

EAGETHERIE 198 (B5T) afEs s REEIERE) '

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of liabilities as current or non-current |
AR 198 (B5T) B JERE Al

Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current liabilities with covenants '

EA SRR 16 58 (B5T) ERfHEh S a

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease liability in a sale and leaseback '
EAAGETHERIE 7 98K trErERE 2!

A ESEAERE 7 98 (B5T)

Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7 Supplier finance arrangements '

FmEETEAE 21 %8 (153]) B T SR

Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of exchangeability

T IS AR 18 5 BT RS A 5

HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements

TR SR A 10 5% e B ga AR 28 f REE AR A S A R EE T Esorg
(f&51)
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale and Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture *

' R20244F 1 H 1 H B LA BYA 2 AR REHART A58 -

Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024.

?R20254 1 71 HECUR Bt F RERARTZESS -

Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025.

P OR20274F 1 7 1 HECUR B F RERIRTZESS -

Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027.

b ERHIHARE -
Effective date to be determined.

EREEER A B A M Z AR ~ E5T R AR Z S B E HaTE © ¥t - St M BaE 2 25k
R HIHEAET) -

Management is currently assessing the impact of the above new standards, amendments and interpretations on the
Group’s financial statements. From the initial assessment, it is considered that there will be no significant impact to the
accounting policies or presentation of the financial statements.
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